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Vision, Mission & Values

—

Everything we do is for our members
and communities.

VISION

We connect people with their
unique life goals.

MISSION

We will create meaningful spaces, deliver a value-added
experience with expert advice, and advocate for financial
literacy in order to foster healthier communities.

VALUES

Collaboration + Passicn + Integrity + Lifelong Learning + Accountability

STRATEGIC FOCUS AREAS
|I la I‘ 97'

Culture ple Operational Business Proc Member Experience  Financial Strength & Sustainability




Message from Board of Directors’ Chair and Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors, Management and Staff are pleased to share some of TCU Financial Group Credit Union’s
(TCU's) highlights from 2020, along with information about the broader financial services sector through the
information provided in this 2020 Annual Report.

The global economy is in a deep recession with the ongoing impact of the pandemic. The impact of the global
COVID-19 pandemic has affected people all over the world and has resulted in profound changes in their lives
through such factors as unemployment, lower returns on their savings, and overall uncertainty of the future.

TCU entered 2020 very cautiously, not knowing the full extent the impact of the pandemic would have on its
operations. As the measures put in place by the Provincial Government to help curb the spread of the virus
increased, TCU made sure to take steps to ensure the safety of our members, communities and staff. It would be
remiss to say that TCU and its members weren't affected in some way by the pandemic, but through effective
management, our dedicated staff and the incredible support of our membership, TCU continues to be a successful
credit union.

Financial Strength

TCU’s financial results in 2020 were better than anticipated even through the resulting effects and uncertainty of the
pandemic. Most importantly, we managed to grow and remain profitable. We maintained our position as the 7th
largest credit union in Saskatchewan with assets of $772 million on the credit union side and another $281 million of
assets under administration on the wealth management side. Faced with declining interest rates on the lending side
which were brought on due to the economic impacts stemming from the pandemic, expense control became a
priority. Similar to other credit unions in Saskatchewan, loan volumes decreased while deposit numbers increased.

Change

Change is constant within the financial industry. A change at TCU in 2020 came in the form of a new permanent
Chief Executive Officer. In 2019 our former Chief Executive Officer (CEO) George Greenwood left TCU and the
Board of Directors temporarily filled the vacant CEO position with Greg Peacock as Interim CEQ. Greg fulfilled this
role in addition to his current role at the time of Chief Financial Officer (CFO). In June 2020, Greg Peacock was
appointed to be the permanent CEQ. Greg brings with him over 25 years of experience in the financial industry and a
long history with TCU. Greg is also continuing to fulfill the role of CFO until that position can be filled.

Members

All of us have had to maneuver around the impacts of the pandemic and the unprecedented effects. We sincerely
express our gratitude to our members for their understanding as we had to make adjustments to our branches’ hours
throughout 2020 in response to the dynamic nature of the pandemic. TCU consistently strived to ensure the safety of
our members, our staff and their families. Members are the reason we exist and are in business today — this hasn’t
changed over the past 68 years. We are sincerely thankful to our members for choosing TCU as their financial
partner and financial services provider.



Our People

Our amazing team is the foundation on which TCU builds its success. We view every one of our employees as a
teammate, each having their own role to make TCU a success. We are committed to having empowered,
knowledgeable team members that deliver the competitive products and services to our members. We have also
made a commitment to ensure that TCU is a great place to work and that TCU provides an appropriate work/life
balance to every team member. We want to thank the entire TCU team for their commitment, support, effort and
contribution to TCU’s success especially during these trying and unknown times.

In addition to our team, TCU has 10 dedicated, professional and knowledgeable Board of Directors who are
committed to enhancing and developing their skills and knowledge to be better directors. As the financial industry is
in continual change, the expectations and demands faced by your Board are increasing every year. We would like to
thank the Board for their continued commitment and dedication to our credit union and the cooperative sector.

Positioning for the Future

As we enter 2021, TCU has many large projects in progress to better position us for the future and, ultimately, to
benefit current and future members:

- TCU’s Board of Directors approved a new strategic direction in 2019 which states: TCU will be a trusted,
professional partner and hub for small and medium sized businesses and their employees. We are
continuing the foundational work on this strategic direction to ensure it will deliver long-term success for
TCU. We will start seeing results of all the work that has gone into this strategy in 2021.

- The banking and financial services industry has evolved in the past decade and TCU must ensure that the
digital and technological needs of our members are met. This continual improvement and constant
innovation of current and new technologies and processes is of high importance to TCU and, as such, TCU
has started a major project to convert our current banking system platform as well as our digital (online)
banking platform to new, modern platforms. The conversion date for both systems is slated for March 2022.

- In October 2020, the Board of Directors of TCU Financial Group Credit Union (TCU) and New Community
Credit Union (NCCU) announced that they have entered into formal discussions regarding a potential
merger between the two organizations.

TCU and NCCU have both started their own due diligence process to determine if such a partnership would
provide value for their respective members. After the due diligence process is complete, and both Boards
agree to continue merger discussions, the credit unions will be developing a more detailed business case
for each Board to review and approve. This will help them determine if they will recommend the proposed
merger to their respective membership.

Thank you for your commitment and dedication to TCU.

Respectfully yours,

Stephanie Mansfield Greg Peacock
Chair, Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer



Stephanie Mansfield - Chair Tony Linner - Vice Chair
Board Member since 2013 Board Member since 2006

Angela Prokop Brendan Bitz Nicole Cox
Board Member since 2020 Board Member appointed Board Member since 2019
in 2020 to fill vacancy

Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors is committed to maintaining focus on the members, the communities
we serve and the financial sustainability of TCU Financial Group Credit Union.

Learn more about our directors by visiting tcufinancialgroup.com

Reagan Lowe Darcy McLean
Board Member since 2018 Board Member since 2008

Tracie Risling Steve Tunison Earl Warwick

Board Member since 2019 Board Member since 2013 Board Member since 2003
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Meeting Attendance

2020 Board & Board Committee Meeting Attendance

Meeting Attendance January 1 - December 31, 2020
CEO
Compensation Governance
Business & Performance Conduct & Human
Board Executive Audit Transformation Evaluation Review Resources Risk
Board of Directors Meeting Committee | Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Other
Stephanie Mansfield
Chair (Nov 2020) 4 of 4 4 0of 5 20f2 50f5 l1of1 60f6 1of2 60f6
Tony Linner
Vice Chair (Nov 2020) 4 0of 4 l1of1l 30f3 4 0of 4 60f6
Brendan Bitz?
(Appointed Nov 2020) 30f3 30f3 20f2
Karen Bradley?
(Resigned Aug 2020) 30f3
Nicole Cox 40of4 50f5 lofl 20f2 6 of 6
Reagan Lowe 40of4 40f4 40of4 20of2 6 of 6
Darcy McLean 40f4 50f5 40of4 50of5 lofl 6 of 6
Graham
Mickleborough? 2 0of 2 lofl 4of4 2 of 2 lofl
Angela Prokop? 20of2 2 0f2 lofl lofl 50of5
Tracie Risling 40f4 40f4 lof1l 6 of 6 6 0of 6
Steve Tunison 40f4 40of4 40f5 40f4 6 of 6
Earl Warwick
Chair (Jan-Nov 2020) 3o0f4 40of 4 30f3 50f5 1of2 4 0of 6

1term ended
2term started

Other includes:
e AGM
e Re-organization Meeting
e Special Board Meetings
e  Strategic Planning Meeting

Note: Our Committee structure changed after the re-organization meeting in June. Any variances seen in committee
attendance are due to the changes.

Delegate Remuneration

2020 Board Honorariums, Per Diems, Travel/Other & Learning/Development

Honorarium & Learning &
Board of Directors Allowances Per Diems Travel/Other Development Total
Stephanie Mansfield
Chair (Nov 2020) $1,950.00 $7,005.00 $0.00 $159.40 $9,114.40
Tony Linner
Vice Chair (Nov 2020) $1,100.00 $4,680.00 $0.00 $50.40 $5,830.40
Brendan Bitz®
(Appointed Nov 2020) $800.00 $2,325.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,125.00
Karen Bradley?
(Resigned Aug 2020) $0.00 $525.00 $0.00 $555.00 $1,080.00
Nicole Cox $800.00 $4.575.00 $0.00 $159.40 $5,534.40
Reagan Lowe $925.00 $5,450.00 $0.00 $50.40 $6,425.40
Darcy McLean $1,075.00 $6,450.00 $0.00 $728.40 $8,253.40
Graham Mickleborough! $500.00 $2,425.00 $0.00 $97.65 $3,022.65
Angela Prokop? $300.00 $3,205.00 $0.00 $1,034.00 $4,539.00
Tracie Risling $875.00 $6,125.00 $0.00 $1,004.65 $8,004.65
Steve Tunison $1,000.00 $5,550.00 $0.00 $529.40 $7,079.40
Earl Warwick
Chair (Jan-Nov 2020) $5,100.00 $5,725.00 $0.00 $50.40 $10,875.40
Total $14,425.00 $54,040.00 $0.00 $4,419.10 $72,884.10

1 term ended
2term started



Investing in Our
Communities

TCU Financial Group is committed to providing support in the communities where we live and work. Our ideal
community is one that is accessible and healthy for our members and for everyone.

In 2020, we were all thrown a curveball when COVID-19 hit our province. Many of us were either impacted
personally, or we know of friends, family members or local businesses who felt its effects. Similarly, non-
profit organizations who fundraise to support education, distribute funding and provide services within our
communities, were forced to either cancel their events or create alternative ways to continue engagement
among supporters.

TCU Financial Group adapted in this new environment by directing our community investment program to
primarily support individuals and businesses in our community who were financially impacted by COVID-19.

30 DAYS OF LOCAL

In the spring, public health measures were introduced to help “flatten the curve” of the
pandemic. As a result, our main streets and shopping malls looked very different. Some
businesses temporarily closed their doors or significantly altered how they served their
customers. With the closures, also came loss of employment for some people.

Thank you!! ‘

Too many great

We wanted to help in any way we could. So, starting on June 1, we created 30 Days of I buinses o menion
Local, a community program aimed at putting gift cards that supported local business

into the hands of people who could use financial help. As its name indicates, the ‘ ;‘;S’i"naeggeasmgi".gw'cal
program ran for 30 days, and every day from June 1 to June 30, people nominated a |

local business they wished to support. Nominees were randomly selected daily and Vet restuayto
support local!
given a $250 gift card to spend at the local business.

Through the course of the program, nearly 8,500 people participated by nominating
and promoting deserving local businesses — including everything from restaurants to
greenhouses and hair salons to hat-makers. TCU Financial Group put $7,500 back into
the community through this program.

FOOD SECURITY & SHELTER

In 2020, the Regina Food Bank gave out an estimated 60 per cent more food than in 2019. They had a
higher request for Christmas hampers and an increased number of first-time users due to the pandemic.
In Saskatoon, 230,879 emergency food hampers were distributed. And Saskatchewan’s child poverty rate
of 26.2 per cent was ranked third highest in Canada.

With the increased demand for food and shelter in our communities, we supported a number of
initiatives by providing donations to the following programs:

« Make Christmas Magic Regina YWCA PCL Construction Matching Donation Fundraiser — $500

. Saskatoon Food Bank & Learning Centre North Prairie Annual Turkey & Ham Fundraiser - $1,000

« Regina Food Bank - $1,000



SCHOLARSHIPS

The 2020 TCU Financial Group Scholarship Program provided $10,000 in financial assistance to eight students
enrolled in a post-secondary education institution who demonstrated excellence in contributing to their
community while balancing their education, extracurricular activities, work and family responsibilities. We
applaud the achievements of the 2020 scholarship recipients!

$2,000 Scholarship Recipients
Annika Carroll | Aden Bowman Collegiate
Rita Nawroz | Evan Hardy Collegiate
Mia Stewart | Centennial Collegiate
Jordi Hazen | Centennial Collegiate

$500 Scholarship Recipients
Jason Monette | St. Joseph High School
Will Kelly | Walter Murray
Elizabeth Gagne | Harvest City Christian Academy
Natalie Vanidour | Tommy Douglas Collegiate Institute

TCU PLACE

TCU Financial Group is pleased to be the naming partner of Saskatoon’s Arts and Convention Centre, TCU
Place. Our partnership underlines our belief in the value of supporting the people who live and do business in
our communities. Over its storied history, TCU Place has hosted many international, national and local events
including conferences, speakers and theatrical productions. It has been home to many local community events,
dance recitals and graduation ceremonies, and is celebrated for bringing people together in the heart of
Saskatoon's civic and cultural life. In August, TCU Financial Group was excited to sponsor the Social Distancing
Concert Series, two concerts featuring Saskatchewan musicians which welcomed guests back to TCU Place
after prolonged closure due to the pandemic.



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion & Analysis (MD & A) is presented to enable readers to assess material changes in the
financial conditions and operating results of TCU Financial Group Credit Union for the year ended December 31,
2020, compared with the prior year. This MD & A is prepared in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial
Statements and related Notes for the year ended December 31, 2020, and should be read together. Unless
otherwise indicated, all amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars and have been primarily derived from the Credit
Union’s annual Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

Corporate Profile

TCU Financial Group Credit Union (TCU) is a Saskatchewan Credit Union regulated by The Credit Union Act (1998)
and The Credit Union Regulations (1999). TCU must also comply with the Credit Union Deposit Guarantee
Corporation’s (CUDGC) Standards of Sound Business Practice, and with our own articles, bylaws and policies. The
Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for ensuring that TCU is managed and operated in a sound and prudent
manner. TCU’s management is responsible for managing, monitoring and controlling credit union operations in
accordance with the legislation, the standards and Board policy.

TCU’s mandate is to provide our members with a full range of financial products and services, which includes
banking and wealth management services. These products and services will be delivered through one of the
following business units of the Credit Union:

e The Credit Union provides traditional retail banking services and products such as consumer and business
loans, consumer and business deposit account products, ATM, internet banking facilities and Wealth
Management.

e TCU Holdings Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCU, and holds and manages all the TCU buildings and
land.

Operational Business Lines

TCU serves its members through two branches and an advice centre in Saskatoon, two branches in Regina,
MemberLine (TCU’s call centre) and online, using internet banking and mobile banking. As a full service financial
institution, TCU offers members a comprehensive line of consumer, business and wealth management products and
services.

TCU retail and business operations provide members with traditional financial products and services to meet their
‘day to day” banking needs and looks to anticipate their future needs and expectations in order to strengthen long-
term relationships, as member needs change.

By partnering with AVISO Wealth, a leading wealth management organization that focuses on service, partnerships
and innovation, TCU provides our highly trained financial advisors the platform needed to provide the expertise our
members have come to expect.

TCU continues to make investments in technology in order to provide members with the innovation they need and
expect while continuing to challenge suppliers and partners to bring innovation and flexibility to the table.



As at December 31, 2020, TCU’s membership included 15,083 members with 1,100 of these members benefiting
from the wealth management platform. Our member assets closed the year at $772,087,000 with $280,780,000
assets under administration with our wealth partner. The 1,100 wealth clients hold $133,168,000 in products with
TCU demonstrating our approach to holistic solutions. While both total member and total wealth clients/households
are down from 2019, average assets per household are up as well as overall asset growth for TCU has increased
3.41%.

TCU continues to focus on flexible solutions for our members in balance with strong credit underwriting and risk
mitigation to protect TCU. Over 400 consumer and business members benefited from flexible loan and mortgage
payment options directly related to the COVID-19 pandemic while 100 business members benefited from TCU
participating in the Canada Emergency Business Account (CEBA) loan program initiated by the government to assist
businesses during the pandemic. TCU’s passion and commitment to its members remains strong.

Governance

As a financial co-operative, TCU is governed by a Board of Directors which is comprised of ten Directors, all of whom
are independent. The functions of the Board include the sanctioning of strategic business plans, corporate mission,
vision, values and guiding principles; monitoring corporate performance against strategic business plans; overseeing
the operations; ensuring compliance with laws and regulations; keeping members informed regarding plans,
strategies and performance of the Credit Union; performance management and compensation of the CEO; and other
related matters as they may arise.

During 2020, the Board of Directors held five regular meetings and five other meetings.
The Board of Directors has also formed seven committees to assist with the governance process.

Audit Committee — The purpose of this committee is to provide independent oversight of the credit union’s
operations and to ensure the accuracy, integrity, security, prudence and legality of its financial transactions and
records. During 2020, the Audit Committee was comprised of four directors and met five times.

Risk Committee — The purpose of this committee is to ensure a strong enterprise risk management framework
exists. This framework provides reasonable assurance that strategic, operational, financial and regulatory objectives
are achieved. The committee oversees the identification, measurement and development of strategies to manage
those risks. The committee also oversees the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. During 2020, the
Risk Committee was comprised of four directors and met four times.

Governance & Human Resources Committee — The purpose of this committee is to ensure an appropriate
governance structure is in place, to oversee the election process of the Board of Directors, the Board evaluation and
development process, along with human resources. This includes the compensation philosophy and culture of the
organization. Additionally, this committee works closely with the executive management to formulate policies and
practices to meet the needs of our members, staff and the corporate entity. During 2020, the Governance & Human
Resources Committee was comprised of four directors and met six times.

Conduct Review Committee — The purpose of this committee is to ensure the integrity and objectivity of its
Directors, Officers and Employees. This committee monitors and reviews related party transactions with the credit
union to ensure they are fair to the credit union and that best judgment is exercised in all matters or related party



relationships as a result of real or perceived conflict of interest. This committee is comprised of the same members
as the Audit Committee. During 2020, the Conduct Review Committee met once.

Executive Committee — The purpose of this committee is to act in the capacity of, and on behalf of, the Board of
Directors between regular or special Board meetings on all Board matters except those which the Board may not, in
compliance with legislative requirements, delegate. Additionally, this committee sets the Board of Director’s regular
meeting and planning meeting agendas. The Executive Committee consists of the Chair and Vice Chair of the Board
of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer. During 2020, this committee met five times.

CEO Compensation & Performance Evaluation Committee — The purpose of this committee is to ensure that a
fair, equitable and competitive compensation program is provided for the CEO. Additionally, this committee conducts
the CEO performance evaluation process and sets the performance plan for the following year. The CEO
Compensation & Performance Evaluation Committee consists of five members of the Board of Directors which are
the Chair, Vice Chair, Chair of the Audit Committee, Chair of the Risk Committee and Chair of the Governance &
Human Resources Committee. During 2020, this committee met five times.

Business Transformation Committee — The purpose of this committee is to provide close oversight and control of
the credit union’s delivery on its strategy, monitoring of the plans and progress and to provide insights, perspectives
and suggestions to the executive sponsor of the overall strategy program. During 2020, the Business Transformation
Committee was comprised of four directors and met four times.

Management Structure

In addition to the Board of Directors and associated committees, the management structure consists of the following:
Greg Peacock — Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Dawn Bell - Interim Chief Risk Officer

Tammy Martins — Chief Business Transformation and Strategy Officer

Kathy Styranko — Chief Operating Officer

Executive Management — The executive management is responsible to oversee the operation of the credit union and
its subsidiary as directed through the strategic plan and policies approved by the Board of Directors. Additionally, the
executive management is responsible for developing processes that identify measures, and monitor and control risks.
TCU has an extensive Enterprise Risk Management process and reports risk management performance to the Board
through the Risk Committee.

Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) — The ALCO Committee is responsible for understanding,
monitoring and managing interest rate risk, liquidity risk, capital adequacy risk and management of strategies in
terms of the overall balance sheet structure focusing on achieving financial targets and capital optimization. The
ALCO Committee, which consists of the executive management and other management personnel, reports to the
Risk Committee. This committee meets, at minimum, quarterly.

Internal Credit Committee (ICC) — The ICC is a top level decision body which adjudicates credit opportunities that
are deemed to have a potential material impact on TCU. The ICC protects TCU's interests through the employment



of sound business practices in pursuit of sustainable growth. The purpose of a strong credit management process is
to protect the credit union.

Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Committee — The ERM Committee is responsible to provide a platform for
committee members to participate in a systematic, timely and structured approach to ensure the alignment of key
strategies with TCU’s risk appetite and risk tolerances. The purpose of a strong risk management process is to
create, as well as protect, value for TCU.

Information Systems and Technology (IST) Steering Committee — The IST Steering Committee is responsible to
provide leadership and planning to align technology investments with our digital transformation strategies, deliver
value, manager performance and risk. The Committee will monitor, evaluate, and approve related technology risk,
cybersecurity, and prioritization of major digital projects.

Subsidiary Company — TCU Financial Group Credit Union has one wholly owned subsidiary company — TCU
Holdings Inc.

Financial Performance Review
Economic Environment

In 2020 the Canadian economy suffered its deepest recession in modern times as the COVID-19 pandemic shut
down businesses and put millions of Canadians out of work. Statistics Canada recorded real gross domestic product
(GDP) shrinking 5.4 percent in 2020. This is forecasted to carry over into the first half of 2021.

The financial challenges and risks that occurred in 2020, had both consumers and businesses curbing their spending
and increasing their savings. Many economists agree that this untapped savings and pent-up demand will drive our
recovery in 2021 when we feel safer to hire, spend and invest again.

While many sectors of the economy were impacted greatly in 2020, there were some that performed well. The
construction, manufacturing, agriculture and mining industries this past year will provide leverage to help the hardest-
hit sectors start to recover in 2021.

Forecasts for 2021

The Conference Board of Canada

Many businesses in Canada face dim prospects over the first half of 2021.

A successful rollout of vaccines will encourage households to spend some of what they've amassed in savings.
Household balance sheets are in great shape thanks to government support and travel bans that have cut spending
on foreign travel to almost nothing.

The federal and provincial governments are pledging continued support to businesses and households. The
pandemic will drive up public debt to record levels, putting a strain on government finances and public spending once
the crisis is past.

Every province will record a sharp rebound in real GDP growth this year as the rollout of vaccines leads to a gradual

lifting of provincial restrictions on economic activity and travel. The recovery will also receive a boost from pent-up
demand and the fact that millions of Canadians who managed to keep their jobs ramped up their savings.



Real GDP is forecast to post growth of 5.3 per cent in 2021 and 3.5 per centin 2022. This follows the deepest
recession in modern times.

Canadian Outlook Summary. The Conference Board of Canada, March 1, 2021
CBRE Research

2020 will be remembered in commercial real estate for many things, but perhaps none more so than an acceleration
of certain trends that benefited some sectors but punished others. Industrial & logistics, along with certain alternative
sectors like life sciences, cold storage and data centres, have thrived in the COVID era, while others like office, retail
and hotels have suffered. With expectations that the COVID crisis may end sometime in 2021, the question will be
which of these sectors will be permanently changed and which will return to “old normal” pre-COVID conditions.

Real estate conditions will start the year in a state of flux. Certain sectors will grow strongly, but a full recovery of
occupier and investor demand will be held back by the continued influence of COVID-19. Spring and summer will see
rebirth and renewal of real estate as a vaccine is widely deployed and further government stimulus drives the
economy forward. Industrial & logistics enters 2021 with the strongest fundamentals and investor interest. We
anticipate the absorption of another 350 million sq. ft. of industrial space in North America on the back of e-
commerce growth. With fast-recovering employment levels, the multifamily sector will shrug off the impact of the
crisis in the first half of the year. It will take until the second half of 2021 for the office sector to begin returning to
normal or begin to undergo a permanent change. Only when workers can safely return to the office will the long-term
extent of remote working levels become clear. Nevertheless, the powerful forces of teamwork, easy collaboration and
face-to-face business interaction should not be underestimated. Investor demand for office assets might surprise on
the upside. Although the retail footprint will continue to contract in 2021, what remains will be stronger, more
interesting, more convenient and more experiential. Increased leisure travel will help the hotel sector in 2021, as it
has in 2020, but a full recovery is not expected to start until group and business travel resumes in 2022.

Canada Real Estate Market Outlook. CBRE Research 2021



Financial Performance Review

Each year, TCU develops a corporate plan through a comprehensive budget and planning process. The following table
provides an overview of key financial measures compared to targets for 2020. Actual results for 2019 have also been included

for comparison.
Financial Management 2020 Actual 2020 Plan 2019 Actual
Growth
Assets $772,087,201 $735,830,238 $746,611,274
Asset Growth 3.41% (1.44%) 0.98%
Loans $564,650,013 $599,749,918 $579,528,695
Loan Growth (2.57%) 3.49% (3.66%)
Deposits $663,016,292 $618,229,629 $626,789,655
Deposit Growth 5.78% (1.37%) (0.13%)
Liquidity Management
Loan to Asset Ratio 73.13% 81.51% 77.62%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) 292.35% >125.00% 235.61%
Capital Management
Common Equity Tier 1/ Risk-weighted Assets 15.08% 14.54% 15.12%
Total Tier 1 Capital / Risk-weighted Assets 15.08% 14.54% 15.12%
Total Eligible Capital / Risk-weighted Assets 15.36% 14.90% 15.50%
Total Eligible Capital / Leveraged Assets 7.97% 8.06% 7.80%
Profitability
Comprehensive Income $3,852,333 $1,091,405 $3,551,585
Return on Assets (ROA) 0.50% 0.15% 0.48%
Efficiency Ratio 83.66% 93.09% 79.28%




Balance sheet assets at December 31, 2020, were at $772,087,000 as compared to $746,611,000 at the end of
2019 representing a 3.41% increase, as compared to 0.98% increase in 2019.

Total balance sheet member loans at December 31, 2020, were at $564,650,000 as compared to $579,529,000 at
the end of 2019, representing 2.57% decrease as compared to 3.66% decrease in 2019.

Syndicated Loans Under Administration (TCU member loans sold to other credit unions) at December 31, 2020, were
at $5,419,000 as compared to $3,084,000 at end of 2019. The increase in the balance is representative of the net of
new loans added to this portfolio less the loan payments made against these loans.

TCU’s loan portfolio is weighted predominantly towards stable, lower risk personal and mortgage loans. Residential
mortgage loans, mortgage secured line of credit loans and other consumer loans account for 67% of our loan
portfolio. Our commercial loan and syndicated loan purchased portfolio accounts for 33% of our total loan portfolio.

Total balance sheet member deposits at December 31, 2020, were at $663,016,000 as compared to $626,790,000 at
the end of 2019, representing a 5.78% increase as compared to 0.13% decline in 2019.

Most of TCU’'s member deposits are concentrated in the higher rate investment type accounts.
Liquidity

TCU’s loan to asset ratio as at December 31, 2020, was 73.13%, which is lower than what it was at the end of 2019.
Our ideal liquidity risk management policy range is between 78% to 83%. The maximum loan to asset ratio is 85%.
TCU has many liquidity management strategies in place to mitigate potential Liquidity Risk. TCU’s primary source of
funds is member deposits. In addition to member deposits, TCU maintains external borrowing facilities from various
sources. TCU has an authorized line of credit with SaskCentral in the amount of $8,000,000 (CDN) as well as an
authorized line of credit with SaskCentral in the amount of $100,000 (USD). In addition, TCU also has a demand loan
in place with SaskCentral in the amount of $12,000,000. TCU also has access to a demand loan with Concentra Bank
with an authorized limit of $10,000,000.

In 2015 through an application process, TCU became an authorized NHA MBS (Mortgage Backed Securities) Issuer
and a CMB (Canada Mortgage Bond) Seller. Having these facilities will help TCU mitigate any additional liquidity risk
in future years. As at December 31, 2020, TCU had a Secured Borrowing value of $40,326,000 within this facility.

TCU, along with all other Saskatchewan Credit Unions, is required to maintain 10% of their liabilities on deposit with
SaskCentral, as the manager of the provincial liquidity program. These liquidity investments provide a safety net of
liquid funds to satisfy payment obligations and to also protect against unforeseen liquidity events. In addition to these
statutory liquidity investments, TCU also maintains an investment portfolio of other liquid investments to meet daily
liquidity requirements.

Profitability

Comprehensive Income in 2020 was just over $3,852,000, as compared to just under $3,552,000 in 2019. The net
operating income in 2020 was just over $2,324,000 as compared to just under $3,024,000 in 2019. Financial
statement reporting standards require us to report “comprehensive income” which includes unrealized gains/losses on
cash flow hedges.



TCU’s total annualized return on assets (ROA) for 2020 was 0.50% on comprehensive income, and 0.25% on net
operating income, as compared to 0.48% on comprehensive income and 0.38% on net operating income in 2019.

Net interest margin is the total revenue received from loan and investment interest less the total interest expense paid
on member deposits and provision for credit and investment losses. TCU’s net interest margin was at 1.956% at
December 31, 2020, which was lower than the net interest margin of 2.262% at the end of 2019. The net interest
margin decrease in 2020 was related to the three (3) prime rate decreases which occurred in March 2020.

We are projecting the net interest rate margin to be slightly higher at the end of 2021 at 2.10%. TCU will be looking at
increasing our exposure to commercial lending as well as increasing syndicated loans purchased from our partners to
help have a positive impact on our margin.

Non-interest revenue includes revenue from sources like commissions and charges, service fees, administration fees
on syndicated loans and fixed asset income. TCU’s non-interest revenue for 2020 was at $4,449,000 as compared to
$4,106,000 in 2019. The unrealized gains and losses on investments and derivatives as indicated above accounted
for the some of the difference between 2020 and 2019.

Interest expense includes the interest paid to our member deposits, and interest paid on borrowed money. The total
interest expense for 2020 was just under $9,513,000 as compared to just under $9,804,000 in 2019.

Provision for loan losses for 2020 was at $157,000 as compared to $1,193,000 in 2019. We did experience a
decrease in delinquency in 2020 and, overall, TCU's delinquency and loan loss provisions are low and well below
industry ratios for an organization with almost a $564,650,000 loan portfolio.

Non-interest expenses include operating expenses such as personnel, occupancy, member security, general
business and governance costs. Non-interest expenses for 2020 were at $16,751,000, as compared to $17,017,000
in 2019, or a decrease of 1.57%. One of our primary focuses is to grow assets without a corresponding increase in
operating expenses. TCU's operating expense ratio continues to be in line when compared with other Saskatchewan
credit unions.

TCU's largest cost relates to personnel costs which represent 56% of our total operating expenses.

Efficiency ratio is a calculation that determines the cost of raising $1.00 of revenue. In 2020, TCU’s efficiency ratio was at
83.66%, as compared to 79.28% in 2019. In other words, it costs TCU $0.8366 to raise $1.00 of revenue in 2020. Our
primary focus is to continue to improve on our efficiency ratio to where it is below 70%.

Member Equity and Capital

Member equity and capital are the primary measurements of a credit union’s financial strength. TCU’s capital
management policy is that we will at all imes remain adequately capitalized, maintaining a prudent cushion of
retained earnings and equity to protect our economic survival and to finance new opportunities.

TCU's eligible capital ratio at the end of 2020 stood at 15.36%, as compared to 15.50% in 2019. The standard as set
by our regulator is that a credit union must maintain a minimum of 10.50% of total eligible capital as a percentage of
risk-weighted assets. TCU’s internal capital management policy is for the risk-weighted capital ratio to be within the
range of 12% to 14%. We are well above both the regulatory requirements and our own standards.

TCU’s member equity position as at December 31, 2020, was at $64,782,000 as compared to $60,930,000 at the end
of 2019.



Management of Risk

Overview

TCU Financial Group Credit Union (TCU) is committed to prudently employing a range of risk management strategies
to mitigate the various risks that it is exposed to within the financial services industry. TCU utilizes an enterprise risk
management (ERM) framework in order to enhance the management of these risks. Based on this framework, TCU
defines risk exposure according to the following six categories:

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk

Market (Interest rate) Risk
Strategic Risk

Operational Risk

Legal and Regulatory Risk

TCU'’s risk management framework includes:

Risk identification and classification

Risk mitigation review and assessment

Policy and procedure reviews and amendments
Compliance and audit reviews

Reporting

Senior management has established an ERM Committee which is responsible for establishing the framework to
identify and classify the risks, as well as establish effective policies and processes to manage the risks. The Board,
either directly or through Board committees, reviews and approves key policies and reporting to ensure proper
oversight to the risk management process.

The Board is responsible to approve the overall business plan including any recommendations from various
committees. The Board also receives reporting from the various Board committees as it relates to approvals made by
those committees.

The Risk Committee receives direct reporting from senior management and is responsible for monitoring the risk
management framework and making recommendations to the Board regarding acceptable levels of risk. The Audit
Committee is responsible to provide oversight of the external and internal audit process and the adequacy of internal
controls.

Executive and senior management are responsible for the implementation of strategies and policies approved by the
Board as well as reporting to the Board or specific committees to ensure proper oversight is maintained.

The ALCO (Asset and Liability Management Committee) consists of the executive management and other
management personnel. As necessary, additional management with specific subject matter expertise will be called
upon to contribute. The committee is responsible for the monitoring of liquidity and interest rate risk as well as overall
credit exposure. This committee provides regular reporting to the Board related to liquidity, market risk and capital
management activities undertaken by management.



Enhanced risk management activities continue to evolve in support of regulatory requirements and risk management
best practices with respect to capital adequacy, capital, liquidity and credit stress testing. Reviews of risk
management related policies and frameworks continue to mature to address more detailed stress testing and
reporting expectations to support business decisions. Workshops and training continue to engage additional
stakeholders to support risk identification and management at all levels of TCU.

TCU has also established an independent internal audit/quality assurance framework. While TCU has outsourced the
internal audit function, oversight, follow-up and reporting continue internally with dedicated resources. Reporting from
this framework is delivered to management with a summary provided to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis to
assist in the oversight of TCU internal controls.

TCU is undertaking a process to review and align overarching policies and plans to ensure an integrated approach
and holistic view of managing the entire business.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss associated with a borrower, obligor or counterparty (collectively referred to as
“counterparty”) failing to meet the agreed terms in their respective loan agreement(s). TCU has developed our loan
policy, procedures and underwriting requirements to assess and manage credit risk, which is inherent in the financial
industry. TCU is constantly monitoring industry standards, market and economic conditions, and regulations in order
to refine and evolve our credit risk practices.

The responsibility for managing credit risk is shared following the three lines of defense governance model. Our
Board delegates credit approval authorities to the CEO; who has delegated credit risk approval authorities to
individuals within the credit department and business segments as necessary to enable daily business activities.
Credit transactions in excess of these authorities must be approved by the Internal Credit Committee and are
restricted to the Standards of Sound Business Practice as provided by our regulator.

Credit risk analysis includes constant review and assessment of our loan portfolio performance; including criteria
such as repayment, security valuation and diversification. Loan delinquency has increased as a result of changes in
economic conditions, but remains within TCU's Board approved risk appetite. We continue to actively manage our
credit book and perform stress testing to form part of the ongoing risk and capital management processes. This helps
determine the potential impact of an economic downturn that may result in defaults and a decrease in housing prices.
Our results show that in an economic downturn, TCU’s capital position would be sufficient to absorb residential
mortgage and Home Equity Lines of Credit (HELOC) losses.

We seek to mitigate our credit risk through a variety of means, including:

o Credit structure — Consistent application of sound credit policies and procedures that set out the
requirements for structuring loans. Underwriting requirements include the use of collateral, amortization,
loan-to-value, reporting and covenants.

e  Security — Requiring the counterparty to pledge collateral as security for the credit to mitigate potential loss
in the event of default.

o Monitoring & proactive management — Regular reporting that assists management in identifying trends
and/or red flags. TCU is better positioned to proactively address concerns and increase the probability the
loan can be rehabilitated.



Loan portfolio concentrations are reported to the Board, with specific strategies having been identified to manage
concentrations in a proactive manner. The largest percentage of our credit book is invested in residential mortgages,
including HELOC. TCU has enhanced our underwriting and review practices to insulate/mitigate risk in our portfolio
associated with market volatility as has been observed in the past year resulting from the pandemic. A more focused
approach to diversification continues to be refined and implemented, which includes increased participation in
commercial lending through a combination of on-book and purchased loans (syndication) across various industries
and provinces.

Residential Mortgage Loan Portfolio

TCU’s residential mortgage loan portfolio is composed of uninsured, insured and HELOC mortgages. TCU has
established policies and procedures, within the confines of regulations that set out maximum loan to value,
amortization periods and review requirements, depending on the mortgage product. Insured mortgages are those
that have obtained contractual coverage protecting TCU against potential loss as a result of borrower default. Default
insurance can be provided by government backed entities or other approved private mortgage insurers. Currently
TCU uses Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation (CMHC) and Sagen (previously called Genworth) to provide
mortgage default insurance.

HELOC is a form of non-amortizing (revolving) credit that is secured by a residential property. Unlike a traditional
residential mortgage, most HELOC's are not structured to fit a predetermined amortization, although regular,
minimum periodic payments are required. TCU is limited to providing the non-amortizing HELOC component of a
residential mortgage to a maximum authorized loan to value (LTV) ratio of less than or equal to 65%.

The following tables provide details to allow for evaluation of the soundness and condition of TCU’s residential
mortgage operations:

Residential Mortgage Loan Portfolio
Mortgage Balance Percentage Number

Insured Loans $ 117,466,892.31 33.29% 528
Uninsured Loans (non-HELOC) $ 115777,913.22 32.81% 568
HELOC $  119,606,727.26 33.90% 1598
TOTAL LOANS $  352,851,532.79 100.00% 2694

Residential Mortgage Term Loan Portfolio by Amortization (non-HELOC)
Amortization Range Mortgage Balance % of Portfolio Number Average

Less than 10 years $ 2,167,254.12 .93% 49 $44,229.60
10 - 15 years $ 6,410,017.00 2.75% 76 $84,342.30
15 - 20 years $ 30,749,160.08 13.18% 172 $178,774.10
20 - 25 years $ 178,762,217.42 76.64% 732 $244,210.60
Greater than 25 years $ 15,156,156.91 6.50% 67 $226,211.30
TOTAL LOANS $  233,244,805.53 100.00% 1096




Residential Mortgage LTV

Average LTV Ratio
Newly Originated Uninsured Residential 68.12%
Mortgages (non-HELOC)
Newly Originated HELOCS — LTV at approval 55.96%
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk analysis includes a review of strategies around member deposit acquisition and other loan funding
sources. TCU has established liquidity, capital management and asset/liability management (ALM) policies which are
approved by the Board and provide direction in managing the associated risks. Loan syndication continues to be one
strategy employed to mitigate liquidity pressures. Existing borrowing facilities with SaskCentral and Concentra Bank
also form part of the management strategy. Management develops strategies designed to attract deposits and non-
interest revenue streams. The ALCO committee is responsible to manage liquidity risk based on the approved policy
and to provide reporting to the Board.

Market (Interest Rate) Risk

Market risk analysis includes a review of market conditions, asset/liability matching and interest margins. Pressure on
interest margin continues. In addition to the ALCO committee, TCU has employed the services of an outside
consultant to assist with our balance sheet management. Services provided by the consultant include scenario
simulation, stress testing based on changes in interest rates, and scenario analysis for long term planning. There is
an increased focus on stress testing and portfolio analysis to assist in developing proactive management strategies.
Interest rate swaps are employed as one strategy to manage interest rate risk. Senior management conducts
ongoing reviews of product offerings, product delivery and product pricing to help ensure profitability. Reporting is
provided to the Board regularly. Work continues to enhance the type and depth of the reporting available to assist
management.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk analysis includes a review of TCU'’s brand, strategic direction, competition for members and
employees, as well as TCU'’s role in the communities we serve. TCU entered into the next 3 year planning cycle in
2019 to set the stage for 2020-2022. The previous plan focused on internal rebuilding and people development. The
2019 planning process introduced a potential shift in our overall strategy as a result of the changes in the economic
conditions, increased competition and changing consumer expectations in general. The traditional book of business
that has served TCU well for many years no longer provides the same level of income and a new focus is needed to
prepare TCU for success in the future. In 2020, the priorities of the new strategic initiatives were refined, and
operational plans for 2021 and 2022 were formulated. These plans will be revisited and adjusted as needed to
ensure that strategic initiatives are progressing.

Management reports to the Board on the progress to plan for initiatives designed around our members, corporate
culture, financial performance metrics and growth as well as operational business processes. The reporting process
that identifies metrics to gauge performance in these strategic focus areas is referred to as the “Balanced Scorecard”.
Our strategic direction is set by the Board, and management is responsible to develop initiatives to support key areas
of the plan. Annual planning meetings with executive management and the Board set the direction for the credit

19



union. Executive and senior management are responsible to develop objectives and action plans. The Board is
responsible to review and approve the Balanced Scorecard annually.

Operational Risk

Operational risk analysis includes a review of human resources, information systems, internal controls, and business
continuity planning. Operational risk occurs when TCU is not able to develop or deliver products and services to its
members due to human error, inadequate or failed technical issues, inadequate internal controls, lack of trained or
qualified staff or other resources, etc. Competition remains a key risk and TCU’s ability to respond to operational risk
issues is paramount to our success. TCU has established policies, procedures, internal controls, and compliance
activities with regular reviews of these controls. For example, TCU has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees
and directors.

As in 2020, a key focus in 2021 will continue to be around data; understanding the available data and increasing the
use of data. Cybersecurity and reliance on third party suppliers are both growing in importance and also continue to
be areas of focus within our operational risk management priorities. Additionally, the increased need for enhanced
technical tools comes with increased cost, and TCU will be making several key technology investments in the next
few years.

Where needed, TCU engages third party experts to ensure a high level of knowledge and support for major
initiatives. TCU also requests and receives audit reports from key suppliers to ensure that these organizations are
able to remain viable partners for our organization.

Legal and Regulatory Risk

Legal and regulatory risk analysis includes a review of fraud and fiduciary risk exposure; the cost to implement
regulatory or compliance regimes; and the possible effect of non-compliance with laws, rules, regulations or ethical
standards. TCU has policies, procedures and internal controls in place to mitigate our exposure to these risks, as well
as assist TCU in complying with laws and regulations. TCU has a designated Compliance Officer to oversee the
compliance regime. The regulatory framework continues to evolve to meet the needs of TCU and the expectations of
the regulator. Enhancing this process will lead to a review of internal controls to ensure proper ownership and
oversight. The internal audit/quality assurance framework has been realigned as part of the organizational restructure
and will continue to provide an independent assessment of the compliance regime, as well as ongoing assessment of
internal controls. Quarterly reporting is provided to senior management, the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee
to enable Board oversight of the compliance and control processes.
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Current Risk Assessment

Based on the risks identified in our strategic planning process, and assessed via the ERM process, TCU has
identified the following priority risks within our four strategic focus areas:

People

The priority risks in the People strategic focus area are employee engagement, alignment of culture and strategy,
and change fatigue. Ensuring our people understand and are able to align individually with the desired culture
continues to be critical to TCU's success. Having the right people with the right skills, behaviors, and attitude will
position them to execute on our strategy. Ensuring that staff are supported and enabled to be resilient in the face of
change will also be essential. TCU continues to invest in our people through education and training, as well as
acquiring the needed expertise and leadership skills to achieve the desired organizational structure.

Operational Business Processes

The priority risks in the Operational Business Processes strategic focus area are policies, measures to define
success, and technology implementation. Technology is a key element for any modern business, and using it
effectively will be critical to achieving TCU's strategic goals. TCU continues to look for effective and efficient
processes to reduce operating costs, improve integrity, and ensure a consistent member experience. Foundational
frameworks to aid in the identification and management of risk continue to be enhanced. TCU will have a continued
focus on policy and framework governance in 2021.

Member

The priority risk in the Member strategic focus area is member acceptance of our strategy. Evolving our core
business is our key strategic initiative and requires the support of all other areas. Ensuring we connect with our
members is paramount to the delivery of a differentiated value. TCU has committed resources to member experience
transformation, along with research and business analytics. Revisiting our sales culture to ensure it aligns with our
strategic objectives continues to be key, while also adapting to our changing business landscape in order to
transform quickly enough to capitalize on new opportunities.

Financial Strength

The priority risks in the Financial Strength strategic focus area are asset and liability management. Managing all of
our assets from a holistic perspective will help ensure they produce the best income possible and support the core
business of providing for our members. Without close management, we run the risk that these new asset
management plans do not produce the desired results. Continued focus on the diversification of our credit book will
assist in mitigating our concentration risk and provide the potential for increased income. This diversification will help
in managing the risk associated with local economic conditions, including those associated with the COVID-19
pandemic.

In addition, several priority risks were identified which impact multiple strategic focus areas:
e Board and management engagement/support — Ensuring Board and management engagement in and
support of strategic endeavours is critical to successful achievement of TCU's strategies. Enhanced
communication and involvement initiatives were started in 2020 and will continue in 2021.
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Change management — Change is a constant. Ensuring that our staff are well-equipped to adapt to change
is integral to ensure that TCU can move forward on our strategic path. TCU is exploring various avenues to
support change management, both from a human resources and a technology perspective.

Data analytics — Data analytics, both financial and member-related, are essential to future initiatives.
Continued focus in this area in 2020 set the foundation for utilizing data going forward. Our technical
infrastructure must be able to support these initiatives, as well as protect TCU against the increased risks
associated with cyber security.

Third party vendors — Reliance on third party vendors continues to grow. Ensuring mutually beneficial, well-
managed, and risk-appropriate relationships will help TCU execute on strategic initiatives and meet member
needs. Contract and vendor management will be a key focus in 2021.
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Management’s Responsibility

To the Members of TCU Financial Group,

Management has responsibility for preparing the accompanying financial statements and ensuring that all
information in the annual report is consistent with the statements. This responsibility includes selecting
appropriate accounting principles and making objective judgements and estimates in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements and for the
accounting systems from which they are derived, management maintains the necessary system of internal
controls designed to provide assurance that transactions are authorized, assets are safeguarded and proper
records are maintained.

Ultimate responsibility for financial statements to members lies with the Board of Directors. An Audit
Committee of Directors is appointed by the Board to review financial statements in detail with management
and to report to the Board of Directors prior to their approval of the financial statements for publication.

Independent auditors appointed by the members audit the consolidated financial statements and meet
separately with both the Audit Committee and management to review their findings. The independent
auditors report directly to the members and their report follows. The independent auditors have full and free
access to the Audit Committee to discuss their audit and their findings as to the integrity of the Credit
Union's financial reporting and the adequacy of the system of internal controls.

7)) P St

Darcy McLean Greg Peacock
Chair, Audit Committee Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members,
TCU Financial Group

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TCU Financial Group and its subsidiaries, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in members' equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Credit Union as at December 31, 2020, and its consolidated financial performance
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Credit Union in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Saskatchewan, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors' Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Credit Union’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Credit Union or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Credit Union's financial reporting process.

continued .../
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT continued

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Credit Union's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Credit Union's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Credit Union to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

March 25, 2021 \/fr'ﬁw. G'vowP LLP

Saskatoon, Saskatchewan Chartered Professional Accountants
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TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for 2019)

ASSETS
2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) $ 7,315,686 6,938,342
Derivative financial instruments (Note 5) 2,626,928 176,489
Investments (Note 6) 181,098,128 143,402,258
Investment property (Note 7) 1,931,733 1,990,726
Loans receivable (Note 8) 564,650,013 579,528,695
Other assets (Note 9) 3,682,507 3,764,082
Property and equipment (Note 10) 10,782,206 10,810,682
$ 772,087,201 746,611,274
LIABILITIES
Deposits (Note 11) $ 663,016,292 626,789,655
Secured borrowing (Note 13) 40,325,789 54,902,774
Other liabilities (Note 14) 3,867,564 3,888,927
Shares (Note 15) 95,120 99,815
707,304,765 685,681,171
MEMBERS' EQUITY
Retained earnings 63,216,719 60,892,500
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,565,717 37,603
64,782,436 60,930,103
$ 772,087,201 746,611,274

APPROVED BY THE BOARD:

77

SERRTY

Director

"See Accompanying Notes"

Director
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TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings - beginning of year

Net income

Retained earnings - end of year

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Accumulated other comprehensive income - beginning of year
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income - end of year

Total Equity

2020 2019
60,892,500 57,868,754
2,324.219 3,023,746
63,216,719 60,892,500
37,603 (490,236)
1,528,114 527,839
1,565,717 37,603
64,782,436 60,930,103

"See Accompanying Notes"
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TCU FINANCIAL GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Interest revenue
Loan
Investment

Interest expense
Borrowed money
Member deposits

Net interest
Provision for credit losses
Net interest after provision for credit losses

Other income

Operating expenses
General business
Occupancy
Organizational
Personnel
Security

Income before income taxes

Income taxes (Note 20)
Current (recovery)
Deferred (recovery)

Net income before other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income (loss)(net of tax)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Total comprehensive income

2020 2019
20,703,682 23,185,478
4,381,617 3,977,098
25,085,299 27,162,576
1,375,256 1,731,212
8,137,489 8,072,744
9,512,745 9,803,956
15,572,554 17,358,620
156,664 1,193,159
15,415,890 16,165,461
4,448,518 4,106,385
5,085,192 5,056,024
1,519,041 1,522,941
176,315 288,524
9,402,893 9,580,785
567,075 568,947
16,750,516 17,017,221
3,113,892 3,254,625
(467,627) 520,179
1,257,300 (289.300)
2,324,219 3,023,746
1,528,114 527.839
1,528,114 527,839
3,852,333 3,551,585

"See Accompanying Notes"

28



TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

2020 2019
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Total comprehensive income $ 3,852,333 $§ 3,551,585
Items not involving cash:
- Amortization on property, plant and equipment 1,219,168 1,020,021
- (Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - (1,393)
- Provision for credit losses 156,664 1,193,159
Net change in other assets and other liabilities 60,212 (650,392)
5,288,377 5,112,980
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities:
Investments (40,146,309) (33,028,609)
Loans receivable 14,722,018 20,835,441
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment - 1,775
Purchase of property and equipment (1,131,699) (973,894)

(26,555,990) (13,165,287)

Cash provided by (used in) financing activities:

Deposits 36,226,637 (788,290)
Secured borrowing (14,576,985) 5,117,678

Shares (4,695) (2,890)
21,644,957 4,326,498

Increase (decrease) in cash 377,344 (3,725,809)
Cash position - beginning of year 6,938,342 10,664,151
Cash position - end of year $ 7315686 $§ 6,938,342

"See Accompanying Notes"
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Incorporation and governing legislation

TCU Financial Group is a for profit corporation governed by The Credit Union Act, 1998 in the Province of
Saskatchewan, Canada. The Credit Union's registered office is located in Saskatoon, Saskatchewan. The Credit
Union provides financial services to members through branches in Saskatoon, Regina and the surrounding area.

In accordance with The Credit Union Act, 1998, Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation (CUDGC) regulates
all credit unions in Saskatchewan. CUDGC establishes Standards of Sound Business Practices, provides regulatory
guidance and guarantees the repayment of all deposits, including accrued interest. If a credit union is not in
compliance with the standards or regulatory guidance, CUDGC has the authority to take necessary action, which
may include reducing or restricting the credit union’s authorities and limits, taking preventative actions, issuing a
compliance order, placing the credit union under supervision or administration, or issuing an amalgamation order.

Basis of preparation and statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Part I of the CPA Canada Handbook -
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The financial statements comply with IFRS adopted by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on March 25, 2021.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain investments
which are measured at fair value.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability the Credit Union
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for measurements that have some similarities to fair value, but are not fair value, such as value
in use on impairment.

The Credit Union follows a fair value hierarchy to categorize the inputs used to measure fair value into Level 1, 2
or 3 based on the degree to which inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirely, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date.

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly: and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Credit Union’s functional
currency.

30



TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements required management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

The most significant uses of judgments and estimates are as follows:
(i)  Valuation of Financial Instruments

The Credit Union determines the fair value of financial instruments for which there is no observable
market price using a variety of valuation techniques as described further in Note 2. The inputs to these
models are derived from observable market data where possible, but where observable market data is
not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The judgments include consideration of
liquidity and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

(i)  Allowances for Credit Losses

Specific allowances are applied to financial assets evaluated individually for impairment. In particular,
management judgment is required to estimate the amount and timing of cash flows the Credit Union
expects to receive. These estimates are based on a number of factors, including the net realizable value
of any underlying collateral.

The expected credit loss model requires the recognition of twelve months of expected credit losses for
performing loans, and of lifetime losses on performing loans that have experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination. The determination of a significant increase in credit risk requires
experienced judgement and considers a number of different factors that vary by product and risk
segment. Some of these factors are based on forecasts of future economic conditions. The recognized
expected credit losses are determined using these estimates, which may be materially different from
actual credit losses realized.
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Credit Union and its subsidiaries.
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses are included in the consolidated financial statements after eliminating inter-
company transactions and balances.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Credit Union. Control is achieved where the Credit Union has power over
the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of its returns. Control is reassessed if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of these criteria. When the Credit Union has less than a majority of voting
rights of an investee, the Credit Union assesses whether it has power over the investee by determining if it has the
practical ability to unilaterally direct relevant activities.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the financial statements from the date control commences
until the date that control ceases. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Included in the consolidated financial statements are the following entities:

Entity Percentage Ownership
TCU Holdings Inc. 100 %

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets and liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss (where transaction costs are expensed). The
classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the entity’s business model for managing financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. The Credit Union uses settlement date
accounting for regular way contracts when recording financial asset transactions. All financial instruments are
classified as fair value through profit or loss, amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.

The business model used by the Credit Union is a key consideration for the classification of financial assets. The
two primary models are to hold financial assets to collect contractual cashflows, or to hold financial assets to
collect contractual cashflows and sell financial assets. The Credit Union’s business model is to hold financial assets
to collect contractual cash flows.

Embedded derivatives are not separated from the host contract, with the contract treated as one instrument at initial
recognition. The classification is determined based on an assessment of the contractual cashflow characteristics and
the business model under which is it managed.
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) when the instruments are:

. Held for trading purposes,

. Part of a managed portfolio with a pattern of short term profit taking,

. Non trading financial assets that do not consist solely of payments of principal and interest (SPPI),
or

. Voluntarily designated as such.

Equity instruments are measured at FVTPL unless the asset is not held for trading purposes and an irrevocable
election to classify as fair value through other comprehensive income is made.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The Credit Union has classified the following financial assets and liabilities as FVTPL:

Cash

SaskCentral shares

Concentra shares

Central 1 bid deposit

Central 1 demand deposit
Other investments

Provincial and corporate bonds
Derivatives

The Credit Union has not voluntarily designated any financial instruments as FVTPL.
Amortized cost

Financial assets classified as amortized cost are debt financial instruments with contractual cash flows that consist
solely of payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and are managed on a hold to collect basis. SPPI payments are
those which would typically be expected from basic lending arrangements. Principal amounts include par
repayments and interest primarily relates to basic lending returns, including compensation for credit risk and the
time value of money associated with the principal amount outstanding over a period of time. Interest can also
include other basic lending risks and costs (for example, liquidity risk, servicing or administrative costs) associated
with holding the financial asset, and a profit margin. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
variability of cash flows that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is
classified and measured at FVTPL.

All financial liabilities are classified as amortized cost unless it has been classified as fair value through profit or
loss.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The Credit Union has classified the following financial instruments at amortized cost:

SaskCentral investments
Loans receivable
Accrued interest
Deposits

Secured borrowing
Other liabilities

Shares

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified as fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) when the financial
assets:

. Are held within a business model that is to hold to collect contractual cashflows and sell financial
assets,

. Have contractual terms that give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are SPPI, and

. Are not designated as held for trading.

The Credit Union has classified the following financial assets as FVOCI:

Derivatives - effective portion used as a cash flow hedge

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are financial contracts whose value is derived from an underlying interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equity, commodity instrument or index. In the ordinary course of business, the Credit Union
enters into derivative contracts for asset/liability management. The Credit Union enters into derivative financial
instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate risk, including interest rate swaps. Derivatives are initially
recognized at fair value at the date that each derivative contract is entered into. They are subsequently measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss, unless they are designated in a qualifying hedging
relationship. Derivatives may include contracts which are designated as and effective as hedges, and/or contracts
which reposition the Credit Union's overall interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign exchange risk profile.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in other non-derivative financial instruments or other host contracts are separated from their
host contracts and accounted for as separate derivatives when certain conditions are met. These conditions include:
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract, a separate instrument
with the same terms would meet the definition of a derivative and the combined instrument or contract is not
measured at FVTPL. Embedded derivatives that are accounted for as separate derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss immediately. The Credit Union does not have any
outstanding contracts or financial instruments with embedded derivatives that require separate recognition.
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument,
or when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a
financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisors,
brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, transfer taxes and duties. Transaction
costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs. The
Credit Union recognizes transaction costs as part of the carrying amount of all financial instruments except those
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial asset impairment

The Credit Union assesses financial assets, other than those recorded at FVTPL, for indicators of impairment at
each reporting period.

Loans receivable

The Credit Union uses the expected credit loss (ECL) impairment model to measure the loss allowance on loans
receivable, in the following categories:

. Stage 1 — the expected losses for the next 12 months on performing financial assets,

. Stage 2 — the expected lifetime losses on performing financial assets that have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, and

. Stage 3 — the expected lifetime losses on credit impaired financial assets.

Stage 1 assets consist of performing loans with credit risk that has not increased significantly since origination.
Stage 2 assets consist of performing loans with credit risk that has increased significantly since origination. Stage 3
assets consist of high risk, non performing or doubtful loans, where it is not expected that the principal and interest
will be collected in full. Stage 1 and Stage 2 performing loans are included in the analysis without consideration of
collateral value. Stage 3 doubtful loans are included in the analysis at the balance outstanding less any collateral
value and consideration of collection costs. Individual loan assets move between stages as credit risk increases or
decreases.

In determining the expected credit losses, Management assesses each loan asset and assigns a risk rating of Stage 1
Remote/Low Risk, Stage 2 Moderate Risk or Stage 3 Higher Risk. Management also estimates the probability of
default and expected loss ratio for each risk rating category, considering a number of factors, such as product type
and terms, local, provincial and national economic factors, historical loss experience and delinquency trends.
Certain factors are based on forecasts of future economic conditions, such as housing starts, unemployment and
interest rates. Loan assets which were modified, but not derecognized, during the period are specifically assessed to
determine if there has been a significant increase in credit risk by comparing the risk of default at the origination of
the loan to the risk of default at the reporting date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The probability of default and the expected loss ratio are applied to the loan assets classified in each stage to
estimate the expected credit loss.

At each reporting period, the Credit Union performs the analysis to estimate the loan allowance. Changes in the
loan allowance are recognized in the provision for credit losses on the statement of comprehensive income as they
occur.

When a loan is impaired, any collateral has been realized, and there is no expectation of recovery, the loan is
written off. Records about written off loans are maintained in case future recoveries are received. Loan allowances
on loans written off in the period are reversed in the period the loan is written off. Recoveries on loans written off
are recognized in revenue in the period the amount is received.

Investments and other financial assets

The Credit Union uses the expected credit loss impairment model to measure the loss impairment on investments
and other financial assets. Management assesses each individual asset and determines whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination and the probability of default. The factors considered include
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty, disappearance of an active market for the security,
prolonged decline in the fair value of a security, as well as local, provincial and national economic factors.

At each reporting period, the Credit Union analyzes individual investments and other financial assets to estimate the
expected credit loss. Changes in the estimated credit loss are recognized in investment revenue for investments and
other revenue for other financial assets on the statement of comprehensive income as they occur.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid securities with a maturity date within 90 days of the
year end date. They are subject to insignificant risk of changes in fair value and are used to manage short term
cash commitments.

Investments

Investments are initially measured at fair value. For investments not classified as FVTPL, incremental transaction
costs are added to the initial measurement. Subsequent measurement is determined based on the classification of
the instrument.

Loans receivable

Loans are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less any loan allowances. A loan is classified as impaired (doubtful) when there is no
longer reasonable assurance that the principal and interest will be collected in full.

Assets held for sale

Assets are considered held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification.
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Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Property and equipment are amortized over their estimated useful lives using the following rates and methods, with
the exception of land which is not amortized:

Assets held under finance leases 15 years straight-line
Computer hardware 4 - 8 years straight-line
Facilities 40 years straight-line
Furniture and equipment 10 years straight-line
Leasehold improvements 15 years straight-line

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at each year end and adjusted if
appropriate.

Gains and losses on the disposal or retirement of property and equipment are determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income
in the year of disposal.

Membership shares

Shares are classified as financial liabilities in accordance with their terms. Shares are redeemable at the option of
the member, either on demand or on withdrawal from membership.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At least annually, the Credit Union reviews its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Credit Union estimates the recoverable amount of a group of assets
(or cash generating unit) to which the asset belongs. A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the Credit Union estimates future cash flows it expects to derive from the asset or group of assets along with
the expectations about possible variations in the amount and timing of those cash flows. The estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or group of assets (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
related impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or group of assets is increased to
the revised estimate of the recoverable amount. The increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset or group of assets in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income as it occurs.

Loan interest revenue

Loan and lease interest revenue is recognized on the accrual basis using the effective interest rate method for all
loans not classified as impaired. When a loan becomes impaired, recognition of interest income ceases when the
carrying amount of the loan (including accrued interest) exceeds the estimated realizable amount of the underlying
security. The amount of initial impairment and any subsequent changes are recorded through the provision for
credit losses as an adjustment of the specific allowance.

Fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of the financial instrument, including loan origination,
commitment, restructuring and renegotiation fees, are capitalized as part of the related asset and amortized to
interest income over the term of the loan using the effective interest method.

Investment interest revenue

Investment interest income is recognized on the accrual basis using the effective interest method. Purchase
premiums and discounts are amortized using the effective interest method over the term to maturity of the
applicable investment.

Swap interest revenue and expenses

Swap interest revenue and expenses are calculated on an accrual basis on fair value and the result netted for
reporting purposes.

Other income
Other revenue is recognized in the fiscal period in which the related service is provided.

Foreign currency translation

Transaction amounts denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollar equivalents at exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Carrying values of monetary assets and liabilities reflect the exchange
rates at the reporting date. Carrying values of non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost reflect
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value
are translated to Canadian dollars at the exchange rate at the date the fair value was determined. Translation gains
and losses are included in profit or loss, except for instruments classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income, which are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Income taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of current and deferred taxes which are recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
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Current income tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary
differences between financial statement carrying amounts and amounts used for tax purposes. These amounts are
measured using enacted or substantially enacted tax rates at the reporting date and re-measured annually for rate
changes. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for the benefit of deductions available to be carried forward to
future periods for tax purposes to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Any effect of
the re-measurement or re-assessment is recognized in the period of change, except when they relate to items
recognized directly in other comprehensive income. The Credit Union is taxed at an effective rate of 24.5% on
taxable earnings eligible for that rate and at 27% on the excess balance.

Deferred taxes are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same taxable entity, or
for different tax entities where the Credit Union intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Future accounting and reporting changes

The Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) has issued new and amended IFRS standards under Part I of
the CPA Canada Handbook which are not yet effective. None of the new or amended standards impact the Credit
Union.

Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

Cash balances $ 7315686 $§ 6,938,342
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Derivatives
. 2020
Notional Amounts Fair values
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total Asset Liability
Interest rate derivatives
Swap contracts $23,900,000 $70,700,000 $94,600,000 $2,626,928 § -
2019
Notional Amounts Fair values
Within 1 year 1 to 5 years Total Asset Liability
Interest rate derivatives
Swap contracts $23,400,000  $94,600,000 $118,000,000 $176,489 $§ -

The above amounts include accrued interest.

Notional amounts are the contract amounts used to calculate the cash flows to be exchanged. They do not represent
credit or market risk exposure. Notional amounts are not exchanged.

The Credit Union has entered into a cash flow hedge to manage a portion of the interest rate risk that arises from
the variable interest cash flows associated with its prime based loans. All swap contracts held are cash flow hedges.
The net interest income and expense for the hedged and hedging items are recognized in interest income as it is
realized. When the hedge results are effective, all gains and losses of the derivative are initially posted to other
comprehensive income and are reclassified to income in the period in which the cash flows from the hedged risk are
recorded. Any ineffectiveness is immediately recognized in profit or loss.

The following table summarizes the hedge ineffectiveness gains (losses) recognized in profit or loss.

2020

N
=]
o
\O

Cash flow hedges $ - $ -
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Investments
2020 2019
Fair value through profit or loss:
SaskCentral shares $ 7,240,059 7,240,059
Concentra shares 2,000,000 2,000,000
Central 1 bid deposit 1,050,018 449,970
Central 1 demand deposit 1,000,000 1,000,000
Other investments 3,061,002 3,358,913
Provincial and corporate bonds 38,654,802 29,112,825
Accrued interest 968,747 966,991
53,974,628 44,128,758
Amortized cost:
SaskCentral liquidity deposits 64,123,500 62,773,500
SaskCentral demand deposit 63,000,000 36,500,000
127,123,500 99,273,500

§ 181,098,128 § 143,402,258

At December 31, 2020, the market value of investments classified as amortized cost is $128,701,226 (2019 -
$99,561,757).

At December 31, 2020, $87,455,927 (2019 - $97,378,043) of investments are expected to be recovered more than
12 months after the reporting date.

Pursuant to Regulation 18(1)(a), credit unions must maintain 10% of total liabilities, using a prescribed formula, in
specified liquidity deposits in SaskCentral, in addition to liquidity required to meet their normal cash flow
requirements. As of December 31, 2020, the Credit Union met the requirement.
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7.

Investment property

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2019

Additions

Transfer from property and equipment
Transfer to assets held for sale
Income tax credit adjustment

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2020

Additions

Transfer from property and equipment
Transfer to assets held for sale

Balance at December 31, 2020

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at January 1, 2019
Depreciation expense

Transfer from property and equipment
Transfer to assets held for sale

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2020
Depreciation expense

Transfer from property and equipment
Transfer to assets held for sale

Balance at December 31, 2020

Net book value

Balance at December 31, 2019
Balance at December 31, 2020

Land Facilities Total
$ 591,983 $2,059,356 $ 2,651,339
- (72,816) (72,816)
$ 591,983 $1,986,540 $ 2,578,523
$ 591,983 $1,986,540 $ 2,578,523
$ 591,983 $1,986,540 $ 2,578,523
$ - $ 530,301 $ 530,301
- 57,496 57,496
$ - $ 587,797 $ 587,797
$ - $ 587,797 $ 587,797
- 58,993 58,993
$ - $ 646,790 $ 646,790
$ 591,983 $1,398,743 $1,990,726
591,983 1,339,750 1,931,733
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Investment property continued

Income related to investment property:

Rental income

Direct operating expenses

Future rental payments receivable:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

Loans receivable

Government guaranteed
Conventional mortgages
- Residential
Personal loans
Foreclosed property
Lines of credit and overdrafts
Non-personal loans
Accrued interest

Secured borrowing

2020 2019
$ 214,790 § 237,628
113,154 99,956
$ 101,636 § 137,672
2020 2019
$ 171,757  § 171,757
729,876 717,531
281,345 465,446
$ 1,182,978 § 1,354,734
2020
Allowances
Performing  Impaired Individual  Collective Net
$115,824,137 $ 1,818,990 $ - - $117,643,127
235,155,205 3,745,421 (111,085) (270,024) 238,519,517
10,169,744 538,925 (172,033) (169,444) 10,367,192
2,399,163 - - - 2,399,163
16,626,941 1,733,304 (160,981) (193,925) 18,005,339
174,902,640 2,016,533 (422,911) (485,638) 176,010,624
1,269,467 435,584 - - 1,705,051

$556,347,297 $10,288,757 $(867,010) $(1,119,031) $564,650,013

$ (40,325,789) -

- $ (40,325,789)
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Loans receivable continued

2019
Allowances

Performing  Impaired Individual  Collective Net

Government guaranteed $128,354,057 § 1,302,152 $ - $ (294)$129,655,915
Conventional mortgages

- Residential 262,793,899 3,241,626 (70,928) (456,474) 265,508,123
Personal loans 13,044,166 712,802 (371,779) (131,037) 13,254,152
Foreclosed property 470,169 - - - 470,169
Lines of credit and overdrafts 21,293,517 306,158 (214,3006) (196,214) 21,189,155
Non-personal loans 143,975,345 5,188,879 (930,581) (611,772) 147,621,871
Accrued interest 1,339,242 490,068 - - 1,829,310

Secured borrowing

At December 31, 2020, $310,846,000 (2019 - $298,926,000) of loans are expected to be recovered more than 12

months after the reporting date.

During the year, the Credit Union administered the advancement and repayment of funds under the Canada
Emergency Business Account Program (CEBA) on behalf of the Government of Canada. As the program
administrator, the CEBA loans outstanding are not assets of the Credit Union and thus are not recognized in the

$571,270,395 $11,241,685 $(1,587,594) $(1,395,791) $579,528,695

$(54,902,774) - - - $(54,902,774)

financial statements. At December 31, 2020, the CEBA loans outstanding totaled $3,710,000 (2019 - $NIL).

The following table discloses the reconciliation of the allowance for expected credit losses on loans:

2020 2019
Allowance for expected credit losses - January 1 $ 2983385 § 2,738,469
Change in expected 12 month credit losses (362,516) (330,085)
Change in lifetime credit losses related to:
Assets where credit risk has increased significantly 85,756 139,339
Assets that are credit impaired (720,584) 435,662
Allowance for expected credit losses - December 31 $ 1,986,041 $ 2,983,385
The aging of loans, including those past due but not impaired, as at December 31, 2020 was:
2020 2019
Current $ 1,391,479 $ 2,767,331
31 - 60 days 857,525 1,971,159
61 - 90 days 483,816 36,104
91 - 120 days 248,283 2,138,300
120+ days 4,957,302 6,150,521
Total $ 7,938,405 §$ 13,063,415

44



TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

Loans receivable continued

The Credit Union holds collateral against loans to customers in the form of interests over property, other securities
over assets, and guarantees. At December 31, 2020, total credit impaired loans were $10,288,757 (2019 -
$11,241,685) and are secured by an estimated collateral value of $9,421,746 (2019 - $9,654,091). The allowance

10.

for expected credit losses on credit impaired loans is $867,010 (2019 - $1,587,594).

Other assets

2020 2019
Accounts receivable $ 383,789 69,537
Deferred income tax assets 562,100 1,819,400
Income taxes receivable 827,352 -
Prepaid expenses 1,909,266 1,875,145
$ 3,682,507 3,764,082
Property and equipment
Furniture and Leased
Land Building equipment assets Total
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2019 $1,791,605 $9.262,574 $7,426,802 $2,714,464 $21,195,445
Additions - 346,298 762,688 2,708 1,111,694
Disposals - - (119,413) - (119,413)
Other (8,707) (56,277) - - (64,984)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $1,782,898 $9,552,595 $8,070,077 $2,717,172 $22,122,742
Balance at January 1, 2020 $1,782,898  $9,552,595 $8,070,077 $2,717,172 $22,122,742
Additions - 46,811 1,084,888 - 1,131,699
Disposals - - (166,706) - (166,706)
Balance at December 31, 2020 $1,782,898  $9.599,406 $8,988,259 $2,717,172 $23,087,735
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - $3,219,643 $6,512,791 $§ 736,132 $10,468,566
Depreciation expense - 378,566 367,273 216,686 962,525
Disposals - - (119,031) - (119,031)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ - $3,598,209 $6,761,033 $ 952,818 $11,312,060
Balance at January 1, 2020 $ - $3,598,209 $6,761,033 $§ 952,818 $11,312,060
Depreciation expense - 410,156 532,862 217,157 1,160,175
Disposals - - (166,706) - (166,706)
Balance at December 31, 2020 $ - $4,008,365 $7,127,189 $1,169,975 $12,305,529
Net book value
Balance at December 31, 2019 $1,782,898  $5,954,386  $1,309,044 $1,764,354 $10,810,682
Balance at December 31, 2020 1,782,898 5,591,041 1,861,070 1,547,197 10,782,206
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11.

12.

Deposits
2020 2019
Chequing $ 183,604,494 $§ 167,678,026
Savings 69,981,066 59,937,094
Term deposits 267,562,152 260,442,407
Registered accounts 138,240,399 134,958,489
Accrued interest 3,628,181 3,773,639

§ 663,016,292 § 626,789,655

At December 31, 2020, $138,252,000 (2019 - $178,365,000) of deposits are expected to be settled more than 12
months after the reporting date.

Loans payable

The Credit Union has an authorized line of credit with SaskCentral in the amount of $8,000,000 Canadian and
$100,000 US. The line of credit bears interest at 1.95% and 3.75% respectively and is secured by an assignment of
book debts and funds on deposit with a tiered interest rate structure based on a ninety day T-Bill rate and bank
prime. At the end of the year, the amount outstanding was $NIL (2019 - $NIL) on the Canadian line of credit and
$NIL US (2019 - $NIL) on the US line of Credit.

The Credit Union through a commercial paper funding agreement with SaskCentral can borrow up to $12,000,000.
The loan bears interest at a rate equal to the RIL Commercial Paper Market Term Rate as established from time to
time plus 37.5 basis points per annum. At the end of the year, the amount outstanding was $NIL (2019 - $NIL).

The Credit Union has an authorized line of credit with Concentra Bank in the amount of $10,000,000. The line of
credit bears interest at a rate equal to the 1 month CDOR rate as established from time to time plus 250 basis
points per annum. At the end of the year, the amount outstanding was $NIL (2019 - $NIL).
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13. Secured borrowing

The Credit Union has transferred an amortizing ownership interest in various qualifying residential mortgage
receivables to various investors through the National Housing Act (NHA) Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS)
Program. During 2020, $- (2019 - $11,886,590) has been transferred. The Credit Union retains the responsibility
for servicing the qualifying residential mortgage receivables. Under the program, the Credit Union has an obligation
to forward principal and interest amounts as per each individual mortgage agreement loans to Canada Mortgage
and Housing Corporation (CMHC) monthly, whether or not it receives payments from mortgagees. The Credit
Union retains certain prepayment risk, timely payment guarantee risk and interest rate risk related to the transferred
mortgages. Due to retention of these risks, transferred mortgages are not derecognized and the securitization
proceeds are accounted for as secured borrowings. There are generally no expected credit losses on the securitized
mortgage assets, as the mortgages are insured against default. Further, investors and CMHC have no recourse
against other assets of the Credit Union in the event of failure of mortgages.

Mortgage loans are pledged against the MBS issuances. As a requirement of the MBS program, the Credit Union
assigns and transfers to CMHC, all of its rights, title, and interest in existing mortgage pools. If the Credit Union
fails to make timely payments under the MBS security, CMHC may enforce assignment to CMHC of the
mortgages included in the mortgage pools backing the securities issued. If CMHC enforces the assignments, all
authority and power of the Credit Union under the terms of the MBS guide, whether with respect to securities
issued or mortgages pooled in the contract, shall pass to and be vested with CMHC.

The associated liability, secured by these loans, is carried at amortized cost and included in secured debt on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The associated liability at December 31, 2020, is recorded net of
unamortized transaction costs of $220,118 (2019 - $333,486).

The Credit Union also retains certain amounts of its issued NHA MBS certificates as part of its liquidity
management strategy. During 2020, residential mortgages of $12,772,244 (2019 - $-) with a fair value of
$12,621,157 (2019 - $-) were assigned to NHA MBS certificates and retained by the Credit Union. These unsold
NHA MBS certificates are reported in loans receivable in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The following table summarized the carrying amounts and the secured debt maturities:

2020 2019
Loan Secured Loan Secured
Assets Debt Assets Debt
Less than 1 year $ 17,042,834 § 17,042,834 $ 11,198,434 $ 11,198,434
1 year end over 23,377,243 23,282,955 43,615,676 43,704,340
Total securitization $ 40,420,077 $ 40,325,789 $ 54,814,110 $ 54,902,774

The following table illustrates the fair value of the transferred assets, the associated liabilities and the resulting net

position:

2020 2019
Fair value of transferred assets $ 40,420,077 $ 54,814,110
Less: fair value of secured debt 41,154,044 55,211,945
Net position $ (733,967) $ (397,835)
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14.

15.

16.

Other liabilities
2020 2019
Accounts payable $ 2,088,987 $ 1,829,649
Lease payable 1,778,577 1,983,081
Income taxes payable - 76,197
$ 3,867,564  $ 3,888,927
Membership shares & equity accounts

Membership shares

Membership shares are as provided for by The Credit Union Act, 1998 and administered according to the terms of
the Credit Union bylaws which sets out the rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions.

The authorized share capital is unlimited in amount and consists of fully paid shares with a par value of $5 per
share. These accounts are not guaranteed by CUDGC. Characteristics include permanence, freedom from
mandatory charge and subordination to the rights of creditors and depositors.

Capital management

Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation (CUDGC) prescribes capital adequacy measures and minimum
capital requirements. The capital adequacy rules issued by CUDGC have been based on the Basel III framework,
consistent with the financial industry in general. CUDGC's Standards of Sound Business Practice (SSBP) that
incorporate the Basel III framework took effect on July 1, 2013.

The Credit Union follows a risk-weighted asset calculation for credit and operational risk. Under this approach,
Credit Unions are required to measure capital adequacy in accordance with instructions for determining risk-
adjusted capital and risk-weighted assets, including off-balance sheet commitments. Based on the prescribed risk of
each type of asset, a weighting of 0% to 150% is assigned. The ratio of regulatory capital to risk-weighted assets is
calculated and compared to the standard outlined by CUDGC. Regulatory standards require Credit Unions to
maintain a minimum total eligible capital to risk-weighted assets of 8%, a minimum total tier 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets of 6% and a minimum common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of 4.5%. Eligible
capital consists of total tier 1 and tier 2 capital. In addition to the minimum capital ratios, the Credit Union is
required to hold a capital conservation buffer of 2.5% effective January 1, 2016. The capital conservation buffer is
designed to avoid breaches of the minimum capital requirement.

Tier 1 capital is defined as a Credit Union’s primary capital and comprises the highest quality of capital elements
while tier 2 is secondary capital and falls short of meeting the tier 1 requirements for permanence or freedom from
mandatory charges. Tier 1 capital consists of two components: common equity tier 1 capital and additional tier 1
capital. Common equity tier 1 capital includes retained earnings, contributed surplus and accumulated other
comprehensive income. Deductions from common equity tier 1 capital include goodwill, intangible assets, deferred
tax assets (except those arising from temporary differences), increases in equity capital resulting from securitization
transactions, unconsolidated substantial investments and fair value gains/losses on own-use property. Additional
tier 1 capital consists of qualifying membership shares and other investment shares issued by the Credit Union that
meet the criteria for inclusion in additional tier 1 capital.
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16. Capital management continued

Tier 2 capital includes a collective allowance for credit losses to a maximum of 1.25% of risk weighted assets,
subordinated indebtedness, and qualifying membership shares or other investment shares issued by the Credit Union
that meet the criteria for inclusion in tier 2 capital and are not included in tier 1 capital.

Regulatory standards also require the Credit Union to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 5%. This ratio is
calculated by dividing eligible capital by total assets less deductions from capital plus specified off-balance sheet
exposures. Based on the type of off-balance sheet exposure, a conversion factor is applied to the leverage ratio.
All items deducted from capital are excluded from total assets. The Credit Union may also exclude from total
assets mortgages securitized through Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporate (CMHC) programs up to and
including March 31, 2010 and all existing and future reinvestments related to Canada Mortgage Bonds (CMB)
Insured Mortgage Purchase Program transactions completed up to and including March 31, 2010.

The Credit Union has adopted a capital plan that conforms to the capital framework and is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors. The following table compares CUDGC regulatory standards to the Credit
Union’s Board policy for 2020:

Regulatory Standards Board Minimum

Total eligible capital to risk-weighted assets 10.5% 12-14%
Total tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 8.5% 12-14%
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 7% 12-14%
Leverage ratio 5% 5.5%

During the year, the Credit Union complied with all internal and external capital requirements. The following table
summarizes key capital information:

2020 2019
Eligible capital:
Common equity tier 1 capital $ 64,549,936 $§ 59,348,703
Additional tier 1 capital - -
Total tier 1 capital 64,549,936 59,348,703
Total tier 2 capital 1,214,150 1,495,606
Total eligible capital $ 65,764,086 $§ 60,844,309

Risk-weighted assets

$ 428,141,511

§ 392,502,917

Total eligible capital to risk-weighted assets 15.36% 15.50%
Total tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 15.08% 15.12%
Common equity tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets 15.08% 15.12%
Leverage ratio 7.97% 7.80%
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17. Related party transactions

18.

Related parties exist when one party has the ability to directly or indirectly exercise control, joint control or
significant influence over the other or is a member, or close family member of a member, of the key management
personnel of the Credit Union. Related party transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured
at the consideration established and agreed to by the parties.

Loans receivable:

At December 31, 2020, certain members of the board of directors and key management personnel were indebted to
the Credit Union for amounts totaling $4,054,654 (2019 - $4,518,289). These loans were granted under the same
lending policies applicable to other members, and are included in loans receivable on the statement of financial
position.

Deposit accounts:

Directors and key management personnel may hold deposit accounts. These accounts are maintained under the
same terms and conditions applicable to other members, and are included in member deposits on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Remuneration:

Compensation provided to directors and key management personnel, consisting of salaries, honoraria, and benefits,
totaled $926,757 (2019 - $1,025,028).

Classification and fair value of financial instruments

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and fair values of the Credit Union’s financial instruments.

2020 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,315,686 $ 7,315,686 $ 6,938,342 § 6,938,342
Investments 181,098,128 182,423,483 143,402,258 143,492,784
Loans 564,650,013 568,059,000 579,528,695 577,070,000
Derivative assets 2,626,928 2,626,928 176,489 176,489
Other assets 404,508 404,508 24,746 24,746
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Deposits 663,016,292 666,532,000 626,789,655 627,466,000
Secured borrowing 40,325,789 41,154,044 54,902,774 55,211,945
Membership shares 95,120 95,120 99,815 99,815
Other liabilities 3,867,564 3,867,564 3,812,730 3,812,730

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair values of financial instruments:

The fair values of short term financial instruments including cash, other assets, and other liabilities are
approximately equal to their book values due to their short term nature.

50



TCU FINANCIAL GROUP
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(with comparative figures for the year ended December 31, 2019)

18. Classification and fair value of financial instruments continued

Fair values of investments are based on quoted market prices, when available, or quoted market prices of similar
investments.

For variable interest rate loans that re-price frequently, fair values approximate book values. Fair values of other
loans are estimated using discounted cash flow calculations with market interest rates for similar groups of loans.

The fair values of deposits with unspecified maturity terms are approximately equal to their carrying values. Fair
values for other deposits and loans payable with specified maturity terms is estimated using discounted cash flow
calculations at market interest rates for similar groups of deposits.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments are estimated by reference to the appropriate current market
yields with matching terms of maturity. The fair values reflect the estimated amount that the Credit Union would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting date.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, by the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

2020
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS

SaskCentral shares $ - $ - $ 7,240,059 $ 7,240,059
Concentra shares - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Derivative assets 2,626,928 - - 2,626,928
Central 1 bid deposits - 1,050,374 - 1,050,374
Central 1 demand deposits - 1,000,346 - 1,000,346
Other investments - - 3,212,241 3,212,241
Provincial and corporate bonds 39,219,236 - - 39,219,236

2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS

SaskCentral shares $ - $ - $ 7,240,059 $ 7,240,059
Concentra shares - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Derivative assets 176,489 - - 176,489
Central 1 bid deposits - 451,051 - 451,051
Central 1 demand deposits - 1,002,872 - 1,002,872
Other investments - - 3,498,656 3,498,656
Provincial and corporate bonds 29,675,670 - - 29,675,670
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19. Financial instrument risk management

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Credit Union if a customer or counterparty defaults on its contractual
payment obligations. Credit risk may arise from loans, receivables and investments.

Credit risk is managed in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors. In
addition, CUDGC establishes standards with which the Credit Union must comply. The Credit Union's Board has
established lending policies and procedures which outline the minimum standards and criteria for granting credit to
borrowers. Certain types of lending are subject to an annual review process to ensure that standards continue to be
met. Accounts which are deemed to be of higher than average risk are monitored more frequently. Policy and
procedures also specify the type of assets which may be taken as collateral and the techniques for valuation.

The Credit Union has established credit limits for individual borrowers to manage overall credit risk of the portfolio
and establish parameters for credit diversification. The maximum aggregate credit per member is limited to 25% of
capital and the maximum unsecured lending limit is $50,000. The established portfolio mix for 2020 is:

Board objectives Actual
Consumer 69% 67%
Commercial 31% 33%

Except as otherwise noted below, the carrying amount of the financial assets recognized in the financial statements,
which is net of impairment losses, represents the Credit Union’s maximum exposure to credit risk, without taking
into account collateral or other credit enhancements held. During the period, $NIL (2019 - $NIL) of loans were
written off but still subject to enforcement activity. At December 31, 2020, the Credit Union held $NIL (2019 -
$NIL) in assets pledged as security on loans.

The following table discloses the Credit Union's exposure to credit risk by risk rating grades:

Loans Investments
Stage 1 Remote / Low Risk $ 534,658,219 $ 181,098,128
Stage 2 Moderate Risk 20,138,622 -
Stage 3 Higher Risk 9,853,172 -
Total $ 564,650,013 $ 181,098,128

In addition, in the normal course of business, the Credit Union has entered into various commitments to extend
credit that are not reported on the statement of financial position, including guarantees and letters of credit. The
primary purpose of these contracts is to make funds available for the financing needs of customers. These are
subject to normal credit standards, financial controls, risk management and monitoring procedures.
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19. Financial instrument risk management continued

Guarantees and standby letters of credit represent irrevocable commitments that the Credit Union will make
payments in the event that a customer can not meet its obligations to third parties, and they carry the same risk,
recourse and collateral security requirements as loans extended to customers. Commercial letters of credit are
instruments issued on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on the Credit Union up to a
stipulated amount subject to specific terms and conditions. The Credit Union is at risk for any drafts drawn that
are not ultimately settled by the customer, but the amounts are collateralized by the goods to which they relate.
Commitments to extend credit represent unutilized portions of authorizations to extend credit in the form of loans,
bankers’ acceptances or letters of credit.

The amounts reported below represent the maximum credit exposure for commitments to extend credit. Many of
these contracts expire without being drawn upon, thereby reducing the Credit Union's credit risk from the maximum
commitment. As many commitments will expire or terminate without being funded, the amounts shown on the table
below do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.

2020 2019
Undrawn lines of credit $ 112,577,136  $ 101,270,402
Letters of credit 364,000 404,000
Commitments to extend credit 53,258,438 27,377,476

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of financial loss to the Credit Union in the event that the Credit Union is unable to generate
or obtain the necessary cash or cash equivalents in a timely manner, at a reasonable price, to meet its financial
commitments as they come due.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors. In
addition, CUDGC establishes standards to which the Credit union must comply. The Credit Union’s primary
liquidity risk policies and procedures include policies for minimum liquidity holdings, monthly monitoring and
access to additional short term financing.

The Credit Union enters into transactions to purchase goods and services on credit and/or borrow funds for which
repayment is required at various maturity dates, including processing the financial transactions of borrowers and
depositors. Liquidity risk is measured by reviewing the Credit Union's future cash flows for the possibility of a
negative net cash flow. The contractual maturities of financial liabilities can be found within the table under interest
rate risk below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss in value of financial instruments that may arise from changes in market factors such
as interest rates, equity prices and credit spreads. The Credit Union's exposure changes depending on market
conditions.

Market risk is managed in accordance with policies and procedures established by the Board of Directors. In
addition, CUDGC establishes standards to which the Credit Union must comply. The Credit Union’s primary
market risk policies and procedures include policies for maximum mismatch levels, monthly monitoring and
adjusting product mix to address match position.
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19. Financial instrument risk management continued

The primary market risk that the Credit Union is exposed to is interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is the potential
adverse impact on the earnings due to changes in interest rates. The Credit Union’s exposure to interest rate risk
arises primarily from timing differences in the re-pricing of assets and liabilities, including financial assets and
liabilities with fixed and floating rates. The Credit Union's exposure to interest rate risk can be measured by the
mismatch or gap, between the assets, liabilities and off balance sheet instruments scheduled to mature or re-price on
particular dates. Gap analysis measures the difference between the amount of assets and liabilities that re-price in
specific time periods.

To manage exposure to interest rate fluctuations and to manage asset and liability mismatch, the Credit Union may
enter into interest rate swaps. These minimize the interest rate risk and cash required to liquidate the contracts by
entering into counter balancing positions. The Credit Union used interest rate swaps in the current year.

The table below summarizes the carrying amounts of financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk by the
earlier of the contractual re-pricing/maturity dates. Re-pricing dates are based on the earlier of maturity or the
contractual re-pricing date and effective interest rates, where applicable, represent the weighted average effective
yield.

2020
Over Over Non-
On Within 3 months 1 year Over interest
Demand 3 months to1lyear toS years S years sensitive Total

ASSETS

Total assets $198,320,000 $ 40,228,000 $124,288,000 372,198,000 $§ 5,106,000 $ 31,947,000 $772,087,000
LIABILITIES

Total liabilities 200,650,000 58,630,000 195,055,000 138,252,000 - 179,500,000 772,087,000

On-balance sheet gap  $ (2,330,000)$ (18,402,000)$ (70,767,000)$233,946,000 $ 5,106,000 $(147,553,000)$ -

2019
Over Over Non-
On Within 3 months 1 year Over interest
Demand 3 months to1lyear toS years S years sensitive Total
On-balance sheet gap $4,206,000 $(32,412,000) $(6,860,000) $182,450,000 $3,992,000 $(151,376,000) $ -

The above tables do not identify management’s expectations of future events where re-pricing and maturity dates
differ from contractual dates.

A 1% increase in interest rates with all other variable held constant would result in an increase in the Credit
Union’s profit for the year ended December 31, 2020 of $643,000 (2019 - increase of $355,000). A 1% decrease
in interest rates with all other variable held constant would result in a decrease in the Credit Union’s profit for the
year ended December 31, 2020 of $226,000 (2019 - decrease of $470,000). The Credit Union uses simulation
modeling to simulate the effect of a change in the market rate of interest.
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20. Income taxes

Income tax expense is comprised of:

2020 2019
Current tax expense
Current period $ (467,627) $ 520,179
(467,627) 520,179
Deferred tax expense (recovery)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 1,257,300 (133,168)
Changes in tax rates and tax laws - (156,132)
1,257,300 (289,300)
Total income tax expense $ 789,673  $ 230,879

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

2020 2019
Income before provision for income taxes $ 3,113,892 $§ 3,254,625
Combined federal and provincial tax rate 27.00% 24.50%
Income tax expense at statutory rate 840,751 797,383
Adjusted for the effect of:
Non-deductible expenses 682 4,245
Non-taxable income (53,521) (48,760)
Deferred tax expense due to change in income tax rate - (156,132)
Other 1,761 (365,857)

$ 789,673  § 230,879

Starting in 2017, the Saskatchewan preferred rate additional deduction for credit unions began phasing out. The
provincial deduction was then fully phased out effective 2020.
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20. Income taxes continued

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities recognized are attributable to the following:

2020 2019
Deferred income tax assets
Property and equipment $ 4,800 $ -
Loans 325,300 422,300
Non-capital loss carryforward 232,500 1,424,000

$ 562,600 § 1,846,300

Deferred income tax liabilities

Property and equipment $ - $ 22,300
Other 500 4,600
500 26,900
Net deferred income taxes $ 562,100 $ 1,819,400
2020 2019
Deferred tax assets
- To be recovered after more than 12 months $ 4,800 $ -
- To be recovered within 12 months $ 557,800 $ 1,846,300
Deferred income tax liabilities
- To be recovered after more than 12 months $ 500 $ 26,900

21. Commitments

The Credit Union has entered into agreements expiring on various dates to the year of 2029. These agreements are
for clearing services, data processing services, and sponsorship. Management believes that these obligations are
part of ongoing operations and are not unduly significant to the financial results of the Credit Union.
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21.

22.

Commitments continued

Lease commitments

The buildings for the Stonebridge and Arlington branches were obtained under a finance lease arrangement.
Additionally, in 2018 the Credit Union entered into a finance lease agreement with Cisco for equipment. The future
minimum lease payments under the finance leases are as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

2020
Total future Future Present value of
mimimum interest finance lease
lease payments charges commitments
$ 187,822 $ 59,156 $ 246,978
752,348 171,918 924,266
838,494 58,727 897,221
$ 1,778,664 $ 289,801 $ 2,068,465
2019
Total future Future Present value of
mimimum interest finance lease
lease payments charges commitments
$ 204,504 $ 66,151 $ 270,655
739,289 197,898 937,187
1,039,376 91,903 1,131,279
$ 1,983,169 $ 355,952 $ 2,339,121

The net carrying amount of land and buildings held under finance lease as at December 31, 2020 was $1,539,716

(2019 - $1,726,945).

The net carrying amount of the equipment held under finance lease as at December 31, 2020 was $7,482 (2019 -

$37,410).

Emplovee future benefits

The Credit Union's employee future benefit program consists of a defined contribution pension plan. Credit Union
contributions to the defined contribution plan are expensed as incurred. The Credit Union has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the plan does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees

the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

Pension benefits of $468,217 (2019 - $455,427) were paid to defined contribution retirement plans during the year.
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23. Significant event

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared a global pandemic for the COVID-19 virus. The
Credit Union is following health advisories and mandatory requirements from local, provincial and national health
and government organizations. The Credit Union has continued to provide lending and deposit services since the

pandemic was declared. The future impact of the the pandemic on the Credit Union's operations and finances, if
any, is unknown at this time.
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SCHEDULE 1
2020 2019
General business
Audit and regulatory inspection $ 713,836  $ 973,672
Business development 456,022 579,139
Cash shortage 3,184 4,949
Computer costs 1,509,919 1,368,475
Service charges, clearing fees 923,675 901,196
Telephone, postage, courier 163,219 159,942
Other general business 1,315,337 1,068,651

§ 5085192 § 5,056,024

Occupancy
Amortization - building $ 636,306 $ 652,748
Maintenance, taxes, insurance - building 660,917 709,366
Utilities 171,818 160,827
$ 1,519,041 $ 1,522,941
Organizational
Annual meeting $ 3402 $ 2,008
SaskCentral dues 51,544 130,097
Development - officials 6,215 16,162
Remuneration - officials 70,824 87,432
Other organizational 44,330 52,825

$ 176,315  § 288,524
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SCHEDULE 1 - Continued

2020 2019
Personnel
Benefits § 1,216,166 § 1,198,993
Development 69,385 128,065
Salaries 8,025,412 8,081,179
Other personnel expenses 91,930 172,548
§ 9402893 § 9,580,785
Security
Bonding insurance $ 63,662 $ 69,563
Deposit guarantee assessment 498,413 499,281
Loan and savings insurance - 103

$ 567,075  § 568,947
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CREDIT UNION DEPOSIT GUARANTEE CORPORATION
ANNUAL REPORT MESSAGE 2020

January 2021

Credit Union Deposit Guarantee Corporation (the Corporation) is the deposit guarantor for
Saskatchewan credit unions. The corporation is also the primary regulator for credit unions
and Credit Union Central of Saskatchewan (SaskCentral). Together, these entities are
considered Provincially Regulated Financial Institutions or “PRFIs”. The Corporation is
mandated through provincial legislation, The Credit Union Act, 1998 and The Credit Union
Central of Saskatchewan Act, 2016 in performing its duties. Provincial legislation also
assigns responsibility for oversight of the Corporation to the Registrar of Credit Unions at
the Financial and Consumer Affairs Authority of Saskatchewan.

The Corporation was the first deposit guarantor in Canada and has successfully guaranteed
deposits since it was established in 1953. By promoting responsible governance and prudent
management of capital, liquidity and guaranteeing deposits, the Corporation contributes to
confidence in Saskatchewan PRFls.

For more information about the Corporation’s responsibilities and its role in promoting the
strength and stability of Saskatchewan PRFIs, consult the Corporation’s web site at
www.cudgc.sk.ca.
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Officers & Vice Presidents

Greg Peacock, Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer

Greg has over 26 years of experience within the financial services industry, over 25 years of
experience of which has been within the credit union system, all with TCU Financial Group.
Throughout these years, Greg has been involved in many aspects of the Credit Union including
Loans Officer, Accountant, Finance Manager and Branch Manager. Greg assumed the role of Chief
Executive Officer in June 2020 and is also temporarily filling the role of Chief Financial Officer, a role
that he previously held since 2006. He provides the overall management and leadership of TCU in
achieving its strategic objectives including improving the well-being of its members and its
communities. Greg was born and raised in Saskatoon and graduated with a Bachelor of Commerce
from the University of Saskatchewan. He and his wife Shelley have one son, Joshua. Greg
volunteers his time as a Director for the Saskatoon Hilltop Football Club.

Dawn Bell, Interim Chief Risk Officer &
Vice President, Governance and Compliance

Dawn has spent the last 24 years working in the financial industry. Dawn has both a Bachelor of
Arts degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Saskatchewan and is a non-
practicing lawyer. Her professional experience includes people and operations management,
regulatory compliance and risk management, as well as strategic planning. Dawn completed
the CUES Governance Leadership Institute in 2019, attaining her Certified Credit Union Director
(CCD) designation. As part of her role, Dawn is filling the following positions: Chief Compliance
Officer, Chief Anti-Money Laundering Officer, Chief Privacy Officer, and Complaints Officer.

Tammy Martins, Chief Business Transformation and Strategy Officer

Tammy comes to TCU Financial Group after having spent her career in leadership positions across
a variety of industries including Financial Services, Manufacturing, Research Development and
Demonstration (RD&D), and most recently, Healthcare. Tammy has a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from Athabasca University and earned her MBA in Executive Management
from Royal Roads University. She also holds a Project Management Professional (PMP)
designation. In her role at TCU Financial Group, Tammy is responsible for leading the
development of the strategy and implementation across all functions and business units. She is
also responsible for Marketing, Facilities, Human Resources and Organizational Development as
well as the Information Technology and Systems departments.

Kathy Styranko, Chief Operating Officer

With 40 + years in the financial services industry, Kathy's experience covers all facets of the business
including sales, support, compliance and risk management and leadership roles at various levels.
Kathy joined TCU in 2003 and moved into her current role in October of 2020 after several years
involved in setting foundational risk based frameworks for key areas of TCU as the former Chief Risk
Officer. Kathy's extensive sales background combined with her work in risk management sets the
stage for strategic leadership to all areas of the Member Experience delivery teams. Kathy is an
empowering and inspirational leader who looks to bring out the best in others and remove obstacles
in order to provide direction to her teams and support a holistic, consistent member experience that
transcends traditional business lines. A believer in lifelong learning, she completed the Masters
Certificate in Risk Management and Business Performance at the Schulich Executive Education
Center, York University in 2019 as well as the Certified Credit Union Director (CCD) designation via
Rotman School of Business, University of Toronto also in 2019. Kathy and her husband Sheldon have
2 adult children, Danielle and Reid, who are currently pursuing careers in medicine and engineering.
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Officers & Vice Presidents

Ronél Eglington, Vice President, People and Culture

Ronél came to TCU Financial Group in 2008 after a successful career in South Africa. Ronél’s
honors degree in Organizational Psychology with a double major in marketing/public relations,
has allowed her to have a broad understanding of the business world. Her retail focus made it
easy to transition to the world of finance. During her career at TCU Financial Group, she has
focused on aligning HR practices with TCU’s progressive strategic focus. In this regard, activities
to refocus organizational culture linked to pro-active employee development initiatives have
helped strengthen the organization.

Chris MacLean, Vice President, Member Experience

Chris came to TCU Financial Group in 2018 after having spent his career in sales and business
relationship management in the Financial Services industry. Chris has a Bachelor of Commerce
degree with a finance major, convocating with great distinction from the University of
Saskatchewan. Chris is responsible for creating and enabling a consistent, holistic experience
that educates and improves the wellbeing of our members. Utilizing clear leadership and his
passion for excellent member service, Chris is focused on creating teams that transcend
traditional business lines in order to create value for TCU Financial Group members.
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